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Claggett's Forest
Hollingsworth Road
Joppa, MD 21085

This rubble stone house is located at the end of a long lane off
Hollingsworth Road. The main unit of this house is four bays by two
and faces south.

This tract is generally associated with the Hollingsworth family who
owned, at one time, over 1,000 acres of Clagett's Forest. The Hollingsworth
family ran a wheel factory for many years on Winter's Run, near what is
now Atkisson Dam. The company, J.C. Hollingsworth and Sons Company, also
owned a gristmill at the same site. The factory was first run by water
power but later a steam engine was installed. This factory was destroyed
by fire near the turn of the century.

The house itself reflects the family's connections with Pennsylvania
and its architectural influence. The family moved to Harford County from
Chester County, Pennsylvania. The Mid-Atlantic house type shown is common
enough: It is two rooms deep and has internal end chimneys and many other
Georgian features, but it lacks the stylish trim and the broad open stair.
The stair is confined to the corner of a room, the hallway is absent and
rooms are laid out in continental plan. The house has four openings on the
front of the first story, including the two front doors, a characteristic
associated with that area from which the Hollingsworth family came.
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

This rubble stone house is located at the end of a long lane off
Hollingsworth Road. The main unit of this house is four bays by two and
faces south. The two story structure has plain quoins and a gable flank,
wood shingled roof with a box cornice. Large corbeled stone chimnies are
located at each inside end of the main unit. The chimney on the east end
is flanked by attic windows 6 lights over 6, on the west side the attic win-
dows are 3/6.

Entrance to this house is most commonly gained through the door on the
west gable end. This door, a plain, moulded panel door with a brass knob,
has a two light transom overhead. A pedimented, gable front entrance porch
protects this entrance. The window on the first elevation of this facade is
6 lights over nine, as on most of the windows at this level.

On the south facade, two doors are in the center bays, each door is
unusually wide and has four panes of glass in each. There are no transoms
or side lights. Windows at the first elevation are 6/9; at the second
elevation, 6/6. A narrow porch with two sets of steps is at the entrance.
A slate patio witia low, rubble stone walls is on the South side. Slate
and stone steps lead into the formal gardens.

The north facade of this dwelling has irregular fenestration. Three
windows are located at the first elevation of this side, each varies in their
sash arrangement. The north west window is 6/9, the center window is 6/6
and the northeast window in 6/1.

The northern half of the east facade is visible. It has an exterior
cellar entrance. The window cn the first elevation is 2/1.

All doors and windows in this house are pegged and beading is also visible.

Inside, this unit is two rooms deep. The northwest room and southwest

room both have beaded chair rails and moulded panel doors with brass knobs. A
diagonal fireplace is in each room, a plain, pegged and beaded mantle is on each
fireplace. Floors have been replaced. A door leads from the northwest room
into a hall, A stairway is located on the west wall of the hall. A cellar
entrance is at its base. Two doors are located on the south wall-each leading
to a separate room. A window on the north facade has a wooden drawer at the
base of the frame. North of the hall is a paneled den. This room is the most
changed having had a small Jater Closet added in the southwest cornmer of the

roOme

The dining room has a diagonal fireplace in the northeast cormer. This
is brick lined and has a plain, beaded mantle. A beaded chair rail and plain
wainscoting is on each wall of this room. A very wide, pegged, 6 panel door
is at the entrance to the kitchen unit.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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A plat of Bynum Run by Thomas White, dated 1725, shows "Claget's Forest"
existed at that time. The date it was patented and the name of the patentee are
not given, however.

This tract is generally associated with the Hollingsworth family who owned,
at one time, over 1,000 acres of Clagett's Forest. The Hollingsworth family ran
a wheel factory for many years on Winter's Run, near what is now Atkisson Dam.

The company, J.C. Hollingsworth and Sons Company, also owned a gristmill at the
same site. The factory was first run by water power but later a steam engine was
installed. This factory was destroyed by fire near the turn of the century.

-

Local tradition has it that the Hollingsworth family lived in the small stone
house (HA-298) just south of the house in question, until the larger house was .
completed. This is said to have been in the early 1800's. Some reports state that
the house in question was completed in 1818 and others claim the year to be circa
1809. TEvery one agrees that HA-298 was in use soon after the turn of that century.
The rather sketchy Maryland tax list of 1814 attributes 21 acres and 16 slaves in
this area’to Isaac Hollingsworth. His home is described as a two story stone dwell-
ing measuring 50' x 30'. On the other side of the border, in the third election
district, Nathaniel Hollingsworth is listed as owning 825 acres specifically mentioned
as '"Claggett's Forest." He is shown to have owned several dwellings, many of them
old and of little account, and none specifically mentioned as stone though some are
stated to be wood. A saw mill is also on the site at this time.

Judging from the 1814 tax list, it seems unlikely that the traditional story
is true. Another difficulty stems from the re-routing of Hollingsworth Road. The
modern road appears to be located west of the original. This area is als9 dissected
by the boundary between the first and third county election districts, which seem
to have moved back and forth between the early 1800's and the present day.

Tt is possible that the house presently in the third election district on the
east side of Hollingswofth Road could be the same house shown on Martenet's map of
1878 in the first eleétion district on the west side of Hollingsworth Road. It is
;é;g possible that Isaac Hollingsworth's home in 1814 could be Rev. Reipe's home in

_f""k

The house itself reflects the family's connections with Pennsylvania and its

architectural influence. The family moved to Harford County from Chester County,

Pennsylvania. The Mid-Atlantic house type shown is common enough: It is two rooms

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

This lot is bounded by Hollingsworth Road on the west, the ovroperty of
Charles A, Middendorf on the south.
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The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created
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1974 Supplement.

The' Survey and Inventory are being prepared for information
and record purposes only and do not constitute any infringe-
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RETURN TO: Maryland Historical Trust '
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Annapolis, Maryland 21401
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The cellar under the main unit of the house is divided into several rooms-
probably meant for cool storage. Diagonal stone firevlace supports are at the
east and west ends. The supports on the west wall have semi-elliptical stone
arches while a single support on the east wall is plain.

The kitchen unit, attached to the east end of the main house, is two bays
long and one story high. The first elevation of this unit is lower than the
main house and there are two steps leading down from the main house's dining
room into the kitchen unit, This room is paneled with beaded boards. The floor
has been covered. A large stone fireplace, painted white, is on the east wall.
There is no mantle, only a large, vegged beam which does not protrude from the
fireplace. There is a brick hearth and the original iron crane is still vresent.
Entrance to the attic is obtained through a trap door above the fireplace. There
is no cellar beneath this section,
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deep and has internal end chimneys and many other Georgian features, but
it lacks the stylish trim and the broad open stair. The stair is confined
to the corner of a room, the hallway is absent and rooms are laid out in
continental plan. The house has four openings on the front of the first
story, including the two front doors, a characteristic associated with
that area from which the Hollingsworth family came.
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